
Monon Town and Township Public Library  
Board of Trustees  

Meeting Agenda // August 14, 2023, 4PM EST 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Approval of July 10, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes  
3. Claims/Payroll for July 2023/Treasurer’s Report 
4. Librarian’s Report 

 
 

5. Personnel Report  
a. Bairon Hernandez, Part-time Student Library Clerk, ending employment effective July 

22, 2023.  
b. Connie Dunn, Part-time Library Clerk, came back to work from her medical leave 

effective July 29, 2023.  
c. Advertising for openings.  

 
6. Old Business  

a. LED Light Conversion  
b. 2024 Budget  

 
 

7. New Business 
a. E-Rate 2024-2025 Resolution  

 
 
 
 

8. Adjournment 
The next meeting is Monday, September 11, 2023 at 4PM. This is also the public hearing for the 2024 
budget.  



Monon Town and Township Public Library Board of Trustees Meeting
Monday, July 10, 2023, 4PM

Present: Austin Stroud, Clark Raver, Desi Kyle, Julie Hart, Rosemary Cooley, Jennifer
Annis, Stanley Minnick
Absent: Desi Kyle, Lexi Taylor
Call to Order: Called to order by Clark Raver at 4:00PM.

Minutes - Jennifer Annis made a motion to approve the June 12 board meeting minutes
and Julie Hart seconded. All were in favor, and the motion passed.

Finances/Treasurer’s Report - Julie Hart made the motion to accept the financial
reports, and sign the claims register. Rosemary Cooley seconded the motion. All were
in favor. The motion passed.
.
Librarian’s report - Work is still ongoing with the lights. We believe we finally found
something that will work. We plan to move forward with the new bulb, and then try to
replace the globe part of the fixtures in 2024. The electrician said it would take 2-3
weeks for the bulbs to arrive. The electrician also will fix the electrical outlet in the front
entrance at the same time, in which case we finally will be able to move forward with the
automatic door repairs.

We’re still advertising for openings, but we did have one student start the last week of
June. Also, Laura has decided not to clean any more effectively the week of August 14.
This is an agenda item, too. We made it a contract position when Laura took on the role.
Barbara is willing to do it on a trial basis through the end of 2023 to see if she wants to
continue with it. She prefers it to go back to an hourly staff role so she doesn’t have to
worry about taxes. I am proposing that the rate for the rest of 2023 would be the same
as what it broke down contract wise for Laura each week, which is $16.00/hour for
about 4-5 hours/week. A determination for the 2024 pay will happen before the end of
the year.

Austin added an agenda item for the fee schedule to reflect some changes before the
end of the year. We have added a third price for laminating, so the costs are 25 cents,
50 cents, and one dollar depending on the size. Austin also went ahead and updated
the non-resident fee to $90 since we will have to change it before 2024 anyways.
Rosemary Cooley made a motion to approve these changes, and Stanley Minnick
seconded. All were in favor and the motion passed.



From Edith: As of now we have started giving away prizes, to the Adults that have
completed their summer reading. We had 21 sign up. We don't have a program set up
for the month of July. But it will be in August 5th at 10:30 to 11:30am on a Saturday.
Purdue Extension will be presenting the program Staying Scam Safe.

From Barbara (she’ll have a full summer reading wrap-up at next month’s meeting): The
2023 Summer Reading program, "It's a Star-Spangled Summer...Read!" has been a
success! We are continuing to build our numbers and had a record amount of
preschoolers in attendance. Thursday, July 6th was the last day for this year's program
with a pizza party for the Beyond Summer Reading group and a performance of Roz
Puppets for preschoolers through 5th graders. A full Summer Reading report will be
given next month.

Personnel Report -

Bairon Hernandez started as a new student library clerk on June 28. We are still
advertising for another library assistant and student library clerk.

Old Business -
The lights were discussed in the librarian’s report.

Barbara asked the bank about the safety deposit box. The bank said only Jennifer and
Clark have access to it now, but Austin can go to the bank and do paperwork to get
access (Jennifer and Clark then also would need to go in and sign again). The board
would like Austin to move forward with this to gain access to it.

New Business -

The custodian work was discussed in the librarian’s report. Rosemary Cooley made a
motion to approve Barbara taking on the duties at $16.00/hour for 4-5 hours/week the
rest of 2023, and Julie Hart seconded. All present were in favor, and the motion passed.

The fee schedule was approved as part of the librarian’s report.

Austin shared a 2024 budget draft. Austin presented a plan to reclassify Laura as a
youth services librarian, move Barbara to head of youth services/bookkeeper, and move
Edith from clerk to assistant immediately. He also shared 2024 salaries and an overall
budget plan for next year that includes 4 percent salary increases for all staff. The board



said that they would like Austin’s salary to increase by 5 percent. The official budget
adoption won’t happen until our October meeting. Julie Hart made a motion to approve
the changes suggested for reclassifying employees immediately and the salary
increases for 2024, and Stanley Minnick seconded. All present were in favor and the
motion passed.

Rosemary Cooley made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 4:35PM and Stanley
Minnick seconded. All present were in favor, and the motion passed. The next
meeting: Monday, August 14, at 4PM.

_______________________ _______________________
Clark Raver, President Rosemary Cooley, Secretary































Librarian’s Report – August 14, 2023 
The work on the lights has been submitted for the rebates through NIPSCO. Austin thinks it will be about 
$5k that we get back.  

Austin is working on another grant to try to get more of the newspapers microfilmed that the State 
Archives Lab was unable to complete (too fragile). This is through the DAR:  
https://www.dar.org/national-society/dar-historic-preservation-grants  We have until October 31 to 
submit, and Julie Gutwein already has contacted the local chapter for a letter of support. We would be 
applying as the Monon Civic Preservation Society since they are a 501c3 organization.  

We’ve started paperwork for the safety deposit box access as well as another CD that we had mature 
this month. They are still offering the same 4% special.  

The automatic door company is scheduled to complete that work on September 25.   

We had a former auditor with the State Board of Accounts (Mike Doll) stop by the library a few weeks 
ago. He is retired, lives in Battleground, and now doing consulting work for libraries to help them with 
tracking depreciation that the state now requires. Austin, and most other libraries have struggled with 
tracking this with the complexity involved. This consultant would be able to get us on track for likely 
$500 or less and then it will be easy to maintain from there. He said with our size that the work would 
likely only take a couple of hours at most.  

We have had a few issues with water seeping in again in multiple areas of the library. Harry Mohler 
(architect) came by to assess things this past week, and we’re hoping to have these issues resolved 
soon.  

We’re still advertising for openings, and hoping to have another person in the mix before Edith’s leave 
period closer to the end of the year.   

Edith had a program with the Purdue Extension Office on staying safe from scams on Saturday, August 5.  

See Barbara’s summer reading report on the next page.  

 

https://www.dar.org/national-society/dar-historic-preservation-grants


Summer Reading 2023 
It’s a Star-Spangled Summer …Read! 

 

Pre-School Story Time – Eleven preschoolers attended this year’s programs. They listened to stories 
about “Paul Bunyan & Babe”, “I’ve Been Working on the Railroad”, “Grandpa’s Tractor” and more.  They 
tapped rhythm sticks to different songs and danced to rhymes and songs with the parachute.  The 
Pledge of Allegiance, the U.S.A. flag and the 4th of July were all celebrated with games and activities. 
Children who had 5 picture books read to them each week were given prizes. 

 

Summer Reading K-5 – This group had 12 children participating. “Paul Bunyan & Babe”, Our Flag was 
Still There, “Paul Revere’s Ride, were just a few of the stories read.  The children were excited to learn 
how to play Jacks, Marbles and the Cat’s Cradle string game. There was a flipping hamburgers rely race 
plus crafts, like making a kaleidoscope and other activities. Each child that read 5 picture books or 1 
chapter book during the week were given a prize. A Fiber Optic Wand, patriotic visor, hand clappers, 
flashlights, candy and a book were given as prizes so they were all ready to celebrate the 4th of July. The 
Patio Drive-In, Francesville, donated free ice cream coupons plus the Indiana State Fair sent us 50 free 
tickets to be used as prizes. During Summer Reading, Silly Safaris performed on Saturday, June 3rd, 54 
parents and children enjoyed the show. Then on July 6th, Roz Puppets performed “The Frog Prince”, to a 
group of 24 parents and children.  

Beyond Summer Reading – 5th grade through High School.  5 youth attended this program. The String 
Lifter, Helium Stick, Mini Golf Physics were a few of the team building activities that the pre-teen/teen 
group did together.  The group read and discussed “Freak the Mighty” by Rodman Philbrick. They 
discussed the longest word in the English language and the longest place name in the U.S.A. (We will call 
it, *Lake Webster.)  Prizes were given for reading the book and a pizza party was held on July 6th. 
These students are interested in starting up a Youth Advisory Group again at the library. A Youth 
Advisory Group would meet monthly and would begin after school is in session. 

The 2024 theme will be “Adventure Begins at Your Library”. We will be focusing on places all around the 
world. An idea that we hope to implement is reaching those students who do not have transportation to 
the library or are not available at the program time. We will be developing a distance summer reading 
program where children can use on-line options from our library like, E-Books and Hoopla to achieve 
their reading goals. Where they can fill in reading logs on-line and still receive prizes by stopping by the 
library any time after reaching their goal. We would have a separate email for corresponding and would 
put a link to this information on the library’s Home Page.  

 

 

*Chargoggagoggmanchauggagoggchaubunagungamaugg // Massachusetts 
 



Collection Area July 2023 Circulation July 2022 Circulation July 2021 Circulation
Adult Fiction 217 248 195
Adult Non-Fiction 64 64 58
Adult/Juvenile DVDs/Videos 120 179 138
Adult/Juvenile Audiobooks 3 3 5
Magazines 51 65 24
Juvenile Fiction 121 161 139
Juvenile Non-Fiction 11 5 15
Young Adult/Teen 9 32 23
Video Games 15 10 1
Hoopla 20 36 21
Overdrive (ebooks/e-audio) 214 182 234
Hotspots 19 33 8
Library of Things 3 8 0
Spanish items 5 0 0
Total Circulation (# of checkouts) 872 1026 861



Personal Services 2023 Operating 2023 Rainy Day 2023 LIRF Total Personal Services 2024 Operating 2024 Rainy Day 2024 LIRF Total
Salary of Librarian 52,000.00$         Salary of Librarians 130,000.00$       
Salary of Assistants 115,000.00$       Salary of Assistants 63,000.00$         
Salary of Custodian 7,500.00$           Salary of Custodian 5,000.00$           
Employee Benefits 64,000.00$         8,239.00$     Employee Benefits 70,000.00$         2,500.00$              2,448.00$     
Total Personal Services 238,500.00$       Total Personal Services 268,000.00$       

Supplies Supplies
Library Supplies 6,250.00$           Library Supplies 6,300.00$           
Cleaning Supplies 2,750.00$           Cleaning Supplies 2,800.00$           
Total Supplies 9,000.00$           Total Supplies 9,100.00$           

Other Services and Charges Other Services and Charges
Professional Services 2,000.00$           Professional Services 2,100.00$           
Communication and Transportation 12,300.00$         Communication and Transportation 12,500.00$         
Printing and Advertising 500.00$               Printing and Advertising 500.00$               
Library Insurance 8,400.00$           Library Insurance 8,600.00$           
Utility Services 22,000.00$         Utility Services 22,500.00$         
Repairs and Maintenance 20,000.00$         25,000.00$            25,000.00$  Repairs and Maintenance 20,500.00$         25,000.00$            25,000.00$  
Rentals 100.00$               Rentals 100.00$               
Dues, Interest, and Taxes 1,250.00$           Dues, Interest, and Taxes 1,500.00$           
Other Services and Charges 18,000.00$         Other Services and Charges 30,000.00$         
Transfer to Library Improvement Reserve 5,000.00$           Transfer to Library Improvement Reserve 5,000.00$           
Ebook Services and Hoopla 6,000.00$           Ebook Services and Hoopla 6,000.00$           
Total Other Services and Charges 95,550.00$         Total Other Services and Charges 109,300.00$       

Capital Outlays Capital Outlays
Furniture and Equipment 15,000.00$         21,749.00$            Furniture and Equipment 15,000.00$         
Books 23,000.00$         Books 23,500.00$         
Periodicals and Newspapers 3,500.00$           Periodicals and Newspapers 3,500.00$           
Nonprint Materials 12,000.00$         Nonprint Materials 12,250.00$         
Total Capital Outlays 53,500.00$         Total Capital Outlays 54,250.00$         

Total Budget 396,550.00$       46,749.00$            33,239.00$  476,538.00$                  Total Budget 440,650.00$       27,500.00$            27,448.00$  495,598.00$     

4% increase for 2024
495,598.00$                  



Prescribed by the Department of Local Government Finance           
Approved by the State Board of Accounts

       Budget Form No. 1

Fund Department Category Sub-Category Line Item Code Line Item Published Adopted

0061 - RAINY DAY NO DEPARTMENT PERSONAL 
SERVICES

Employee Benefits Employee Benefits $2,500 $2,500

0061 - RAINY DAY NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Repairs and Maintenance Repairs & Maintenance $25,000 $25,000

0061 - RAINY DAY NO DEPARTMENT PROPERTY TAX CAP Property Tax Cap Impact Property Tax Cap Impact $0 $0

0061 - RAINY DAY Total $27,500 $27,500

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT PERSONAL 
SERVICES

Salaries and Wages Salary of Assistants $63,000 $63,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT PERSONAL 
SERVICES

Salaries and Wages Salary of Custodian $5,000 $5,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT PERSONAL 
SERVICES

Salaries and Wages Salary of Librarian $130,000 $130,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT PERSONAL 
SERVICES

Employee Benefits Employee Benefits $70,000 $70,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES Operating Supplies Cleaning and Sanitation Supplies $2,800 $2,800

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES Other Supplies Library Supplies $6,300 $6,300

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Professional Services eBook Services & Hoopla $6,000 $6,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Professional Services Professional Services $2,100 $2,100

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Communication and 
Transportation

Communication & Transportation $12,500 $12,500

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Printing and Advertising Printing & Advertising $500 $500

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Insurance Library Insurance $8,600 $8,600

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Utility Services Utility Services $22,500 $22,500

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Repairs and Maintenance Repairs & Maintenance $20,500 $20,500

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Rentals Rentals $100 $100

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Other Services and 
Charges

Dues, Interest, & Taxes $1,500 $1,500

Budget Form 1 - Budget Estimate
Year:  2024   County:  White    Unit:   Monon Public Library

Page 18/2/2023 1:59:44 PM



Prescribed by the Department of Local Government Finance           
Approved by the State Board of Accounts

       Budget Form No. 1

Fund Department Category Sub-Category Line Item Code Line Item Published Adopted

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Other Services and 
Charges

Other Services & Charges $30,000 $30,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Other Services and 
Charges

Transfer to LIRF $5,000 $5,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT CAPITAL OUTLAYS Machinery, Equipment, 
and Vehicles

Furniture/Equipment $15,000 $15,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT CAPITAL OUTLAYS Other Capital Outlays Periodicals and Newspapers $3,500 $3,500

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT CAPITAL OUTLAYS Books and Other Media Books $23,500 $23,500

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT CAPITAL OUTLAYS Books and Other Media Nonprint material $12,250 $12,250

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT PROPERTY TAX CAP Property Tax Cap Impact Property Tax Cap Impact $0 $0

0101 - GENERAL Total $440,650 $440,650

2011 - LIBRARY 
IMPROVEMENT 
RESERVE             

NO DEPARTMENT PERSONAL 
SERVICES

Employee Benefits Employee Benefits $2,448 $2,448

2011 - LIBRARY 
IMPROVEMENT 
RESERVE             

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Repairs and Maintenance Repairs & Maintenance $25,000 $25,000

2011 - LIBRARY 
IMPROVEMENT 
RESERVE             

NO DEPARTMENT PROPERTY TAX CAP Property Tax Cap Impact Property Tax Cap Impact $0 $0

2011 - LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT RESERVE Total $27,448 $27,448

UNIT TOTAL $495,598 $495,598

Page 28/2/2023 1:59:44 PM



NOTICE TO TAXPAYERS

Prescribed by the Department of Local Government Finance           
Approved by the State Board of Accounts

       Budget Form No. 3 (Rev. 2019)
 Print

7/19/2023 3:11:13 PM

 Public Hearing Date Monday, September 11, 
2023  Adoption Meeting Date Monday, October 9, 2023

 Public Hearing Time 4:00 PM  Adoption Meeting Time 4:00 PM

 Public Hearing Location 427 N Market St Monon IN  Adoption Meeting Location 427 N Market St Monon IN

 Estimated Civil Max Levy $219,884

 Est. Fire Max Levy $0

 Est. Fire Territory Max Levy $0

 Est. School Operations Max 
Levy $0

Property Tax Cap Credit 
Estimate $2,200

1
Fund Name

2
Budget Estimate

3
Maximum Estimated Funds 

to be Raised (including 
appeals and levies exempt 

from maximum levy 
limitations)

4
Excessive Levy 

Appeals

5
Current Tax Levy

6 
Levy 

Percentage 
Difference 

(Column 3 / 
Column 5)

0061-RAINY DAY $27,500 $0 $0 $0

0101-GENERAL                 
                

$440,650 $219,884 $0 $211,308 4.06%

2011-LIBRARY 
IMPROVEMENT 
RESERVE             

$27,448 $0 $0 $0

Totals $495,598 $219,884 $0 $211,308

Complete details of budget estimates by fund and/or department may be seen by visiting the office of this unit of government at 
427 N Market St Monon IN.  

Notice is hereby given to taxpayers of MONON PUBLIC LIBRARY, White County, Indiana that the proper officers of MONON 
PUBLIC LIBRARY will conduct a public hearing on the year 2024 budget. Following this meeting, any ten or more taxpayers may 
object to a budget, tax rate, or tax levy by filing an objection petition with the proper officers of MONON PUBLIC LIBRARY not 
more than seven days after the hearing. The objection petition must identify the provisions of the budget, tax rate, or tax levy to 
which taxpayers object. If a petition is filed, MONON PUBLIC LIBRARY shall adopt with the budget a finding concerning the 
objections in the petition and testimony presented. Following the aforementioned hearing, the proper officers of MONON PUBLIC 
LIBRARY will meet to adopt the following budget:

The Notice to Taxpayers is available online at www.budgetnotices.in.gov or by calling (888) 739-9826.

http://budgetnotices.in.gov/















	MeetingAgenda_8.14.23
	July 10, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes 
	Claims&FinancialReports
	LibrariansReport_8.14.23
	Summer Reading Report 2023
	*Chargoggagoggmanchauggagoggchaubunagungamaugg // Massachusetts

	July2023CirculationStats
	Sheet1

	2024MononLibraryBudget
	2022_VS_2023Budgets

	2024BudgetGateway
	Form3NoticetoTaxPayers2024Budget
	20242025Eratepaperwork

